O WO ~NOoO O~ WN P

[y

11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42

APPROVED
TOWN OF PELHAM
BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING
MINUTES
January 21, 2014
APPROVED - February 18, 2014

CALL TO ORDER - approximately 6:30PM

PRESENT: Mr. Edmund Gleason, Mr. William McDevitt, Mr. Doug Viger, Mr. Robert
Haverty, Mr. Hal Lynde (arrived after meeting commenced), Police Chief Joseph
Roark.

ABSENT:
None

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

MINUTES REVIEW

January 7, 2014
MOTION:  (Viger/McDevitt) To approve the January 7, 2014 public meeting minutes as
amended.

VOTE: (4-0-0) The motion carried.
January 7, 2014 Non-Public minutes were not available.
January 9, 2014 Non-Public minutes were available, but not reviewed/signed by Selectmen. Mr.

Gleason asked the Board to review and sign those minutes.

ANNOUNCEMENT(S)

e Town Administrator on Administrative Leave. It is a personnel issue; when there is
resolution everyone will be notified accordingly. All issues normally directed to the
Administrator will be directed to Joseph Roark.

e 2014 Town Meeting Schedule:

- 2014 Town Deliberative Session — Tuesday, February 4, 2014 at 7pm in Sherburne
Hall

- 2014 School Deliberative Session — Wednesday, February 5, 2014 at 7pm in
Sherburne Hall

- 2014 Town Meeting — Tuesday, March 11, 2014 from 7am to 8pm at Pelham High
School

o \Wednesday, January 22, 2014 First day for candidates in towns with non-partisan official
ballot system to file declarations of candidacy with town clerk. Friday, January 31, 2014 is
the last day for candidates to file. List of Openings:

Selectmen — 2 for 3 years; Town Moderator — 1 for 2 years

Town Treasurer — 1 for 3 years; Budget Committee — 3 for 3 years
Cemetery Trustee — 2 for 3 years; Library Trustee — 2 for 3 years, 1 for
2years

Trustees of the Trust Funds — 1 for 3 years Planning Board — 2 for 3 years



43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING/January 21, 2014

Mr. Gleason noted the next Selectmen’s meeting would have been the same night as the Deliberative
Session. He was not planning to schedule a meeting at this time unless it was necessary to convene a
non-public session.

OPEN FORUM

None.

APPOINTMENT(S)

Jeff Gowan, Planning Director:
e E911 Issues Continued Discussion
e State’s Feedback on the Sherburne Road Study
e Update on Flood Study

Mr. Gowan said the Highway Safety Committee (‘HSC’) along with Assessing Assistant Susan Snide
gathered on January 15, 2014 and reviewed a preliminary list of problematic roads that Fire Chief
James Midgley had put together. Several roads were added to that list. It was the consensus of the
HSC to wrap up the remaining problematic roads and be done with the process. There are
approximately twenty-five issues, such as names, numbering etc. Contact has been made with the
E911 Bureau; they think of addresses being any location with a phone line. The HSC would like to
come back and meet with the Selectmen in April. Roads requiring re-naming and re-numbering will
have to go in front of the Planning Board for a recommendation. There will also be public hearing(s)
held.

Mr. Lynde arrived.

Mr. Gowan said in the past residents of roads to be re-named have been invited to provide input. He
said during the present process of conducting public hearings, any roads associated with the round-
about project can be reviewed. He noted that the Post Office was concerned with the road name
Blacksmith Lane conflicting with Blackstone Circle in the auto-complete functions that some mailing
houses use.

Mr. Gleason felt it was best to proceed cautiously and complete the project correctly. He said coming
back in April seemed to be a reasonable approach. There was no objection by the Selectmen. Mr.
Gowan said he would bring that directive back to the HSC; they will meet as often as necessary to
conclude the process.

With regard to the State’s feedback on Sherburne Road, Mr. Gowan said his comments were
expanded to include Old Gage Hill Road and Route 38. He said when Michelle Marshall of New
Hampshire Department of Transportation and her team met with the Selectmen they spoke about
whether or not projects had the right cost benefit analysis to qualify for Highway Safety Improvement
(‘HSIP’) funds. He said unfortunately all the improvements at the Sherburne Road/Mammoth Road
intersection fell short of the needed rank. He said the State still preferred the idea of a round-about
but the State would not fund it. He said at some point they may have funds from exactions that could
be applied to at least have a design done. He believed having a design would change the cost ratio
benefit for the State’s analysis.

Mr. Gowan said the State found they were ready to move forward with some work at Route 38 and
Old Gage Hill Road. Those improvements were specific to improving sight distance and controlling



94

95

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING/January 21, 2014

access to the convenient store. Mr. Gowan told the Selectmen he would work closely with the store
owner so they didn’t feel ganged up on. He believed the State’s proposal would marginally improve
the intersection. Mr. Gowan said the State required a letter on Town letterhead, which he drafted for
Selectmen review/signature. He read the draft aloud, which in summary indicated the Selectmen’s
support for the State to move forward with their proposed work at the Old Gage Hill Road/Route 38
intersection. He said he would make sure the Selectmen receive the letter for review.

Mr. Gleason recalled that the Selectmen put off any action on Sherburne Road pending the State’s
review of interim modifications. He asked if the State required direction or approval from the
Selectmen to proceed with any recommended action. In reviewing the State’s correspondence, he
took their answer as they wouldn’t do any work at the intersection because it couldn’t be paid for with
the HSIP funds. Mr. Gowan said he would reach out to the State and find out their intentions. Mr.
Gleason recalled the State had recommendations for Sherburne Road, but at the time the Selectmen
held it off pending the State’s review of the previous study done in that area. Mr. Gowan said he
would find out the status and ask the State for clarification.

Mr. Gowan told the Selectmen that the Town’s contact for the round-about project with the New
Hampshire Department of Transportation (‘DOT’) had changed. He met with Brian Wilmot, who
was now the Town’s contact with DOT and reviewed all concerns and pending information the Town
was trying to seek; this included the question of what the status was for utility work. Mr. Gowan
said he would stay in constant contact with the State until he could provide a meaningful update to the
Selectmen.

With regard to the flood study discussion, Mr. Gowan and Mr. McDevitt met with Matt Kennedy and
Peter Walker of Vanasse, Hangen, Brustlin, Inc. (*VHB’) to discuss what types of work the
individual bridges would need. He noted the Daniel Gionet Bridge (Main Street Bridge) was
scheduled with the State for 2017 and the Willow Street Bridge which would be scheduled in the next
few years. VHB spoke about applying hydrodynamic variables to the study. Previously they used
fixed flood elevations. They have the ability with a more in depth study to ‘plug in’ items such as
more flooding than what has occurred and different bridge spans to determine impacts accordingly.
To do this type of study and have the ability to establish priority, additional data is necessary. VHB
has been asked to respond back to Mr. Gowan with options, costs, scopes of work and benefits for the
Selectmen to consider. It was understood that a cost estimate would need to be provided for work
proposed. Mr. Gowan said VHB requested they be allowed to get back to him in April which would
provide time to gather cost estimates.

Mr. Lynde went back to the topic of the round about and asked Mr. Gowan if he knew the status of
the utility work. Mr. Gowan answered no. He said he impressed upon Mr. Wilmot the need for
determining the status. He said Mr. Wilmot understands the Selectmen have the expectation of an
update. Mr. Gowan will be in constant contact with Mr. Wilmot until he has an update to provide to
the Selectmen.

Brian Johnson, Park & Recreation Director:
e Pelham Veteran’s Memorial Park Playground Grant
e Update on Raymond Park

Mr. Johnson commented that the department received a $20,000 (matching) grant due to their
“Playful City” status. The matching $20,000 has already been raised through their participation at the
Rockingham Park Games of Chance. He showed the Selectmen a proposed plan at Pelham Veteran’s
Memorial Park (‘PVMP’) to create a sand pit play area that would have a water element. They also



144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING/January 21, 2014

plan to build a tower resembling a tree fort. The focus of the playground area will use the natural
elements of the area to create a double slide.

Mr. Gleason confirmed that the playground construction (including the slide) would be under the
direction of a qualified company. Mr. Johnson answered yes. The company that designed the slide
was located in Portsmouth, NH. and would be on site organizing the work. He noted that volunteers
would not be used to build the slide. Mr. Gleason questioned if the company was sanctioned by an
organization that typically reviewed playgrounds. Mr. Johnson replied he would have the Local
Government Center involved since they performed yearly playground inspections for the Town.
They would have the opportunity to review the design prior to construction. There was a brief
discussion regarding the material that would be installed on the ground at the play site.

Mr. McDevitt reiterated all of the costs were being raised by non-taxpayer dollars. Mr. Johnson said
that was correct. They received a $20,000 grant and they raised $20,000 through participation at
Rockingham Park.

There was a consensus by the Selectmen to allow Mr. Johnson to proceed. Mr. Johnson said their
goal was to construct the play area in the Spring and have it ready for summer camp.

Mr. Johnson then discussed Raymond Park (1201 Mammoth Road fields) and the desire to have a
building (similar to the Muldoon Park structure) constructed; however the numbers came in rather
high. He said at this point they would take another look at the type of building to construct.

Mr. Johnson said with Steepletop Kindergarten no longer functioning, the Congregational Church
was looking to remove some of their playground equipment. Hard numbers haven’t yet been
discussed, but Mr. Johnson estimated a cost of approximately $3,000. This equipment would be
relocated to the Raymond Park Scout Lodge for use by the Summer Tot Camp program. Mr. Johnson
will speak with the Boy Scouts so as to not interfere with their activities.

Mr. Gleason believed the Selectmen may have already given approval for the funds to be
encumbered. Mr. Johnson didn’t realize the funds may have been encumbered. Mr. Roark confirmed
that Mr. Johnson was to go forward and purchase the items. Mr. Gleason answered yes; is the funds
had been encumbered.

Mr. Gleason told Mr. Johnson the Selectmen and the Town’s people appreciated the work he was
doing and the efforts of expanding the programs.

OTHER BUSINESS

Highway Department Bid Recommendations and Awarding of Bids

Mr. Gleason said the Selectmen had received a list from Don Foss the Highway Road Agent naming
his recommendations for the Highway bid awards. Mr. Roark said he gave a preliminary review of
the recommendation list. He said it appeared the petroleum based items along with some of the other
items had decreased in cost from the previous year; however, the equipment rentals seemed to either
be the same or had a slight increase.

Mr. Viger commented that in the past Mr. Foss had done a good job going out to multiple bids and
coming in with a recommendation for the suitable bidder. He was confident in the list that had been
provided and was willing to approve everything that had been presented by Mr. Foss. Mr. Gleason



194
195
196
197
198

199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING/January 21, 2014

said he personally went through every one of the bids and found that almost every one of them was
the low bidder.

It was noted that the list of bidders was available for public inspection.

MOTION: (Viger/Haverty) To support Don Foss’ recommendation for bid packages listed in
the 2014 Highway Department bid recommendations.

VOTE: (5-0-0) The motion carried.

Discussion and Vote on Petition Warrant Articles

Mr. Gleason stated three petition warrant articles were received; two of which were monetary articles
that would require a vote of the Selectmen.

The first article for discussion was to see if the Town would vote to raise and appropriate $680,000 to
purchase a new fire truck of this amount $680,000 will come from the operating budget. The article
was reviewed by Town Clerk and found to have the appropriate number of validated signatures.

Mr. Viger commented as long as there were the required number of signatures a petition warrant
article could be submitted. He said the proposed article had not been in front of the Budget
Committee or the Selectmen. He believed raising $680,000 in one lump sum would certainly put a
burden on the taxpayers. He was not willing to support the article at this time.

Mr. McDevitt asked how much was in the budget for the replacement fire truck. Mr. Viger said the
conversation that the Selectmen and Budget Committee had during budget review was for the
replacement of a rescue tanker; a dual function apparatus. Previous to this year fire apparatus had
been paid off through lease payments over the next ten years. The proposed budget contained
approximately $72,000 for a lease option payment. Mr. Viger said $680,000 wasn’t in the budget.

Mr. Gleason said the Selectmen had discussions about placing the apparatus in the budget so the
voters could vote on it. He noted that the voters had approved the apparatus in the past; the existing
tanker truck is in excess of 15 year old and the tank is rusting. He said they were simply replacing a
vehicle. He said it was erroneous to say that the Selectmen were trying to slip a new fire truck into
the budget. Mr. Gleason said they were replacing an existing, aging, non-functioning piece of
equipment with a newer piece of equipment which would carry the Town through the next twenty
years. He noted up until 2012 the budget had $62,000 to pay off a previous engine. The dollar figure
for the proposed lease wouldn’t be a new addition to the budget; it was the continuation of a program
to maintain the equipment infrastructure.

Mr. McDevitt commented if the petition article passed it would direct the Selectmen to purchase an
engine basically for cash and take $680,000 out of the budget of which approximately $602,000
wasn’t in the budget for that purpose. That money would come from other program/items within the
budget.

Mr. Viger questioned if the Selectmen were obligated to purchase a fire engine in one lump sum if the
petition article passed. Or if they could continue to enter into a lease agreement. He also questioned
what would happen if the article failed. Mr. McDevitt said if Town Meeting passed an article to
purchase a new fire truck for a certain amount of dollars, that’s what they are being directed to do.
He felt it was clear. Mr. Viger asked if the Selectmen would have the purview to determine if the
purchase is done through a bond with a specific amount of time to pay. Mr. Gleason said the



241
242
243
244
245
246

247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING/January 21, 2014

Department of Revenue Administration (‘DRA”) said if the article passes the money had to be spent
on the fire truck and nothing else. With respect to the ‘No means No’ law, Mr. Viger asked if the
Town could still purchase a fire truck if the article failed. Mr. McDevitt said there were certain parts
of the ‘No means No’ law that haven’t been tested, therefore there wasn’t a lot of case law to review.
He said to the degree that the lease/purchase was in the budget, if the voters say yes to that budget he
felt they were saying yes to the lease.

MOTION: (Viger/Lynde) The Selectmen do not support the petition warrant article. (To
purchase a new fire truck for $680,000).

VOTE: (5-0-0) The motion carried. The Selectmen voted in the affirmative to NOT
support the petition warrant article.

The Selectmen reviewed the petition article that read “To see if the voters will authorize the reduction
of that Town budget by $624,000 (approximately 5%).”

Mr. Gleason said in addition to the petition article, he asked the Finance Director to provide
information that would address the impact of the article. He said the Selectmen needed to discuss
what they would do with the article if the voters approved it and how it would be allocated to the
departments. He noted that the Budget Committee shot down the original proposal and that individual
came back in with the citizen’s warrant. He commented there was no basis to the 5% reduction, other
than the philosophy that the Town should be able to absorb it. Mr. Viger said at the at the time, a
member of the Budget Committee offered a 5% reduction at the beginning of the budget cycle that
wasn’t supported. After review it was evident by him and the board that cutting 5% out of the budget
would result in some catastrophic events such as layoffs and reduction in service. The issue was then
submitted as a petition warrant article. Mr. Viger said 5% may seem like a small percent in the whole
scheme of things, but consideration should be given to the percent of the budget they have no control
over, such as contracts, insurance etc.

Mr. Lynde made a motion to NOT support the petition article to reduce the operating budget by 5%.
Mr. Haverty seconded the motion.

Mr. McDevitt believed the Selectmen should tell people up front what the impacts would be, versus
simply telling people the reduction would be awful. He said the government belonged to the people.
He understood that the DRA provided opinion that the article was advisory. He said when he was
working and his boss gave advice he generally took it. He commented if the article passed it was
advice from the boss (voters). He felt it was critical for the Selectmen to indicate what they would do
if the article passed. Mr. McDevitt suggested going back to the department heads and asking them
how they would meet the numbers.

Mr. Gleason said he asked the Finance Director to review the budget. The elements that would be
hard to take money from would be insurance, debt, debt principal and retirement. Those items alone
represented approximately $4.2 million dollars out the budget of thirteen million dollars. He said if
they decided not to lay people off, the salary portion would then be a fixed number, which equated to
a burden on departments of approximately 15% that they would have to absorb.

Mr. Viger noted they may not be able to recover from a 5% reduction because by the time of the vote
the Town would be two thirds through the first quarter.

Mr. Lynde said realistically departments should be asked to review a 10% cut because of the factors
that couldn’t be reduced. He questioned if the Cemetery and Library were exempt. He said during



286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING/January 21, 2014

the past six to seven years the Selectmen had submitted lean budgets to try to stay ahead of the curve
on maintaining roads and infrastructures.

Mr. Gleason said the situation would be further compounded if the petition article passed for the fire
truck. The budget would be reduced by $602,000 in addition to the proposed 5% reduction.

Mr. McDevitt said he would vote to not support the petition and said no one should read anything into
his comments. He noted that insurance and retirement were variable expenses according to the
number of employees. He said union agreements didn’t require the Town to have a set number of
employees; the contracts indicate if the Town employs people, they are to compensate them.

The Selectmen discussed the impacts to departments if they were faced with having to make
reductions. Mr. Viger said the proposed 5% reduction was brought to the Budget Committee. He
said they couldn’t find 5% without cutting services. Ultimately the voters will have the final say. Mr.
Lynde understood it was a Budget Committee member that was the originator of the petition article.
He asked if that member made suggested cuts during the budget review process. Mr. Viger said at the
end of every voted line item that member made a recommendation on the Town and School side to do
an overall cut of those budgets by 5%. Mr. Lynde questioned if he identified where those cuts were.
Mr. Viger answered no; it was a broad based cut. He said the board took it very seriously and had a
long discussion; they just couldn’t make it work.

Mr. Haverty said the biggest core responsibility of the Selectmen was to prepare and present a budget.
He said after careful consideration they had done so. Over a period of years they had pared down the
budget and made it lean. He felt it would be irresponsible of the Selectmen to consider the article,
which was a whim of one individual who got signatures to pander to a small faction in the Town. He
said he would not support the article at the Selectmen’s meeting or on the ballot. He said if it passed
he would not support implementing it. Mr. Haverty said he was voted into office to do what was
reasonable from a budget perspective.

Mr. Gleason said the Selectmen had an opinion from legal and DRA that say the petition article is
advisory. He felt they should do an assessment of what the potential impacts would be to the Town.
He said the Selectmen had a responsibility to provide emergency services to the Town. If those
elements were going to be jeopardized to compensate for a vote that really wasn’t thought out, he
agreed with Mr. Haverty in saying he had to do what was right for the Town.

Since the first duty of government is the safety and security of its citizens, Mr. McDevitt suggested
that the $51,000 that would need to be carved from the Fire Department and the $56,000 that would
come from the Police Department, not be taken from those departments, but instead be spread among
other departments which are not in the business of safety and security of citizens. Mr. Haverty
questioned where the line would be drawn for what was considered safety. He said it’s sometimes a
grey line. Mr. McDevitt said it was the Selectmen’s job to draw that line.

Mr. Gleason asked Selectmen of what they wanted to prepare to inform voters of the potential impact.

Mr. Roark said when there are typical municipal budgets running upwards of 80% (plus) in salaries, it
left a remaining 20% for all other expenses. Those departments would need to cut employees. He
said it may come down to looking at certain departments and cutting them out (i.e. Park & Recreation
and Library) and maintaining the other departments/services in Town at the level people have come to
expect for safety and quality of life. He noted as soon as those departments are cut the Town’s
quality of life would go down, which would in turn impact the Police departments over years when
property values drop out because of not having those items. Mr. Roark didn’t feel that the Town



337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352

353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING/January 21, 2014

could recover from the proposed cuts in one year. He was leery in trying to piecemeal cuts because
all the departments were intertwined. He didn’t want any misunderstandings about his comments
regarding cutting Park & Recreation or the Library. He is one of the biggest supporters of those
departments and would be devastated if there were major cuts done to them.

Mr. Haverty believed the best thing they could say in the voter’s guide that the full financial impact of
the cut has not been established at this point in time without significant further investigation. In his
opinion, for the Selectmen to come up with a complete analysis within a short amount of time would
only lend to the credibility to the petition.

Mr. Roark suggested it would be simple to convey the following in a Town Report: “This will result
in drastic cuts in the level of services and your quality of life as a citizen and resident of the Town of
Pelham.”

The Selectmen acted on the motion made earlier.

MOTION: (Lynde/Haverty) The Selectmen do NOT support the petition warrant article.
(To reduce the Town Budget by $624,000, approximately 5%).

VOTE: (5-0-0) The motion carried. The Selectmen voted in the affirmative to NOT
support the petition warrant article.

Mr. Viger liked the wording suggested by Mr. Roark, but also suggested the Selectmen be ready to
defend those words at Deliberative Session if questions arise. He said the department could
determine their fixed costs to better understand where each department stood for actual cuts.

Mr. Gleason said the information put together by the Finance Director showed the costs that were
fairly stable.

The Selectmen discussed how they would proceed. Mr. Gleason asked the Board if they wanted to
task the departments to assess the impact of: a) reduction of $624,000 and b) reduction of $1.2 million
dollars. Mr. Viger believed it would be a premature effort for department heads at this point in time.
He felt they could get a ‘snapshot’ of the situation and be able to speak to it well. Mr. Lynde felt they
should wait. Mr. Gleason agreed that there was validity in waiting. He said if it picked up
momentum and passed the Selectmen would need to do a lot of homework.

Mr. Roark questioned if an opinion could be included in the Town Report. He was concerned with
the Town Report’s deadline. It was Mr. Gleason’s preference to proceed with Mr. Roark’s
recommendation to include a narrative in the voter’s guide. He said everything else would be
separate for their support. Mr. Roark questioned if the Board could express that type of opinion in the
Town Report. Mr. Gleason said the voter’s guide, not the Town Report could have narrative.

Mr. Haverty said the wording could indicate that it was a petition article submitted by a voter and at
present was advisory only. Mr. Gleason felt Mr. Roark’s statement was valid. He said voters should
understand if the Town was forced in that type of hardship position it will result in a reduction of
services the people have come to expect.

Mr. McDevitt said he would draft the voter’s guide for Selectmen review. Mr. Gleason asked that
Mr. Roark’s suggested wording be included.



381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420

421
422
423
424
425

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING/January 21, 2014

The last petition warrant article was a resolution to regulate political spending. Mr. Gleason read the
petition article aloud. There were thirty-three validated registered voters who signed the petition.

Final Review and Vote of 2014 Town Warrant Articles

The Selectmen were provided with the complete list of 2014 warrant articles for review. Mr. Gleason
said article #13 & #14 need to indicate they are not recommended by the Selectmen.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR / SELECTMEN REPORTS

Mr. Lynde said the school put out a press release relating to their efforts of getting information out to
the public about substance abuse awareness. He read the press release aloud. He said they were
trying to get grant funding in the schools to develop a peer mentoring program in both the middle
school and high school.

Mr. Gleason said there were still three issues open on the Senior Center expansion: 1) handicap
accessible door to the rear of the facility; 2) correction to handicap ramp; and 3) new handicap rail for
front door. He said he confirmed there was still approximately $2,300 remaining in the warrant
article for the expansion. He’s asked the Financial Director if she would find the quotes associated
with those items, as they were in the process of being addressed. He was also able to ascertain there
was $6,900 available in an exaction fund that was never expended. Mr. Gleason said he would
identify the associated costs and apprise the Selectmen of such. It was his recollection the Selectmen
had already approved two of the items. Mr. Gleason said there was an issue of tiles breaking in the
kitchen area, which constituted a safety concern. He said because some of the tiles were removable,
they had been switching the broken tiles with ones that weren’t broken. He said he asked the Senior
Center director to get a quote to replace the tiles. That quote will be shared with the Selectmen; this
would be an item for the Town Buildings budget. Mr. Gleason said the Senior Center director would
like consideration given to changing the name of the center; the word ‘senior’ had a negative
connotation to some of the younger members. In conclusion, Mr. Gleason said he received a letter
from a representative of Tennessee Gas who spoke about an expansion of the natural gas facilities to
meet increasing demands that would go from Northern Maine down into Massachusetts. A proposed
time line was included which included public outreach and proposed construction in April, 2017 with
service beginning in November, 2018. Mr. Gleason sent a letter requesting they meet with the
Selectmen to discuss what the project would entail and what the benefits would be for Pelham. There
was no objection to having a representative meet with the Board.

REQUEST FOR NON-PUBLIC SESSION

MOTION: (Viger/Haverty) Request for a non-public session per RSA 91-A:3,1l, a & ¢
(Personnel; Matters which, if discussed publicly, would affect adversely the
reputation of any person)

ROLL

CALL: Mr. Gleason-Yes; Mr. McDevitt-Yes; Mr. Viger-Yes; Mr. Robert Haverty-Yes;
Mr. Lynde-Yes

It was noted that when the Board returned, after the non-public session, the Board would not take any
other action publicly, except to possibly seal the minutes of the non-public session and to adjourn the
meeting. The Board entered into a non-public session at approximately 8:15pm.



426

427
428
429
430

431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING/January 21, 2014

The Board returned to public session at approximately 8:45pm.

MOTION: (Viger/Haverty) To seal the minutes of the non-public session indefinitely.
VOTE: (5-0-0) The motion carried.
ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: (Viger/Haverty) To adjourn the meeting.
VOTE: (5-0-0) The motion carried.
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 8:45pm.
Respectfully submitted,

Charity A. Landry
Recording Secretary

10



